
May 21, 2024 

Upper Mississippi River 
Basin Associa on 

170th Quarterly Mee ng 

Agenda 
with 

Background 
and 

Suppor ng 
Materials 

Hotel Blackhawk 
Davenport, Iowa 



170th Quarterly Meeting 
Davenport, Iowa 

  
 

Agenda 
May 21, 2024 

 
Time      Topic                                                                                       Presenter          

 
9:30 a.m.  Call to Order and Introductions Grant Wilson, Minnesota DNR 
    
9:40 A1-9 Approval of Minutes of February 27, 2024 Meeting  
    
9:45 B1-22 Executive Director’s Report Kirsten Wallace, UMRBA 
    
9:50 F1-40 Principles, Requirements, and Guidelines Robyn Colosimo, OASA(CW) Office 
   USACE Agency Specific Procedures  
    
10:20  Flood Risk Reduction and Resilience Planning  
  

D1-3 
 Downscale Hydroclimatic Modeling Predictions 
 Upper Mississippi River System Flow Frequency Study 

Zachary McEachran, NOAA NWS 
Scott Whitney, USACE 

    
10:50  Break  
    
11:10 E1-3 Navigation and Ecosystem Sustainability Program   
   Status Report and Outlook 

 Estimated Costs of Navigation Program 
 Inland Waterways Navigation Construction Capital 

Investment Strategy 
 Navigation Industry Perspectives 

Andrew Goodall, USACE 
 
Michael Tarpey, USACE 
 
Paul Rohde, Waterways Council 

    
12:00 noon  Lunch  
    
1:00 p.m. C1-4 USFWS Upper Mississippi River System Refuge System Sabrina Chandler, USFWS 
    
1:30  USACE Mississippi Valley Division  Brig. Gen. Kimberly Peeples, USACE MVD 
    
1:50 G1-5 Wetlands Restoration  
   ASA(CW) Policy Memorandum 

 State Reports 
Lauren Leuck, ASA(CW) Office 

    
2:20  Break  
    
2:40  Federal Fiscal Reports UMRBA Federal Liaisons 
    
3:20 H1-8 Administrative Issues  
   FY 2025 Budget 

 Future Meeting Schedule 
 

    
3:30 p.m.  Adjourn  

 



ATTACHMENT A 
 

Minutes of the February 27, 2024 
UMRBA Quarterly Meeting  

(A-1 to A-9) 
 
 

 

 
 



Draft 
Minutes of the 169th Quarterly Meeting 

of the 
Upper Mississippi River Basin Association 

February 27, 2024 
Virtual 

Rick Pohlman called the mee ng to order at 9:05 a.m.  Par cipants were as follows: 

UMRBA Representa ves and Alternates: 

Rick Pohlman  Illinois Department of Natural Resources 
Loren Wobig Illinois Department of Natural Resources 
Chad Craycra  Illinois Department of Natural Resources 
Tim Hall Iowa Department of Natural Resources 
Jake Hansen Iowa Department of Agriculture and Land Stewardship 
Grant Wilson Minnesota Department of Natural Resources 
Patrick Phenow Minnesota Department of Transporta on (Virtual) 
Chris Wieberg Missouri Department of Natural Resources 
Chris Klenklen Missouri Department of Agriculture  
Ma  Vitello  Missouri Department of Conserva on 
Wade Strickland Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources 

Federal UMRBA Liaisons: 

Thatch Shepard U.S. Army Corps of Engineers, MVD (on behalf of Brain Chewning)  
Mark Gaikowski U.S. Geological Survey, Midcon nent Region (Virtual) 
Sabrina Chandler U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service 
Richard Vaughn  U.S. Department of Agriculture, Natural Resources Conversa on Service 

Others in A endance: 

Kirk Hansen  Iowa Department of Natural Resources 
John Seitz Illinois Department of Natural Resources 
Brian McCoy Illinois Department of Transporta on 
Amy Kendig Minnesota Department of Natural Resources 
Grace Loppnow Minnesota Department of Natural Resources 
Kelly Pennington Minnesota Department of Natural Resources 
Vanessa Perry  Minnesota Department of Natural Resources 
Ken Henderson Missouri Department of Agriculture  
John Frederick Missouri Department of Natural Resources 
Brenda Kelly Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources (Virtual) 
Sammi Boyd Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources (Virtual) 
Mike Halsted  Wisconsin Department of Transporta on, Harbors, and Waterways (Virtual) 
Thatch Shepard U.S. Army Corps of Engineers, Mississippi Valley Division 
Jim Cole U.S. Army Corps of Engineers, Mississippi Valley Division 

A-1



LeeAnn Riggs U.S. Army Corps of Engineers, Mississippi Valley Division 
Samantha Thompson U.S. Army Corps of Engineers, Mississippi Valley Division 
Trevor Cyphers U.S. Army Corps of Engineers, St. Paul District 
Angela Deen U.S. Army Corps of Engineers, St. Paul District 
David Po er U.S. Army Corps of Engineers, St. Paul District 
Nathan Wallerstedt U.S. Army Corps of Engineers, St. Paul District 
Kyle Bales U.S. Army Corps of Engineers, Rock Island District 
Rachel Hawes U.S. Army Corps of Engineers, Rock Island District 
Andrew Goodall U.S. Army Corps of Engineers, Rock Island District 
Marshall Plumley  U.S. Army Corps of Engineers, Rock Island District 
Davi Michl U.S. Army Corps of Engineers, Rock Island District 
Greg Kohler U.S. Army Corps of Engineers, St. Louis District 
Joan Stemler U.S. Army Corps of Engineers, St. Louis District 
Brian Markert U.S. Army Corps of Engineers, St. Louis District 
Jake Greif U.S. Environmental Protec on Agency, Office of Water 
Whitney King U.S. Environmental Protec on Agency, Office of Water 
Amy Shields U.S. Environmental Protec on Agency, Region 7 
Dane Boring  U.S. Environmental Protec on Agency, Region 7 
Anthony Civiello U.S. Environmental Protec on Agency, Region 7 
David Pra  U.S. Environmental Protec on Agency, Region 7 
John Winter U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service, UMR Refuges 
Steve Winter U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service, UMR Refuges 
Ma  Mangan U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service, UMR Refuges 
Kraig McPeek  U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service, Illinois-Iowa Field Office 
Heidi Keuler U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service, Illinois-Iowa Field Office 
Lauren Larson U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service, Illinois-Iowa Field Office  
Sara Schmuecker U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service, Illinois-Iowa Field Office 
David Dupre U.S. Geological Survey, Central Midwest Water Science Center 
Christopher Churchill U.S. Geological Survey, Upper Midwest Environmental Sciences Center 
Jim Fischer U.S. Geological Survey, Upper Midwest Environmental Sciences Center 
Mike Welvaert Na onal Oceanic and Atmospheric Administra on, NWS 
Madeleine Castle Senator Josh Hawley Office (Missouri) 
John Flesher Associated Press 
Lindsay Brice Audubon  
Anshu Singh Corn Belt Ports  
Gary Loss HNTB 
Jill Cra on Izaac Walton League 
Madeline Heim Mississippi River Ag and Water Desk/Milwaukee Journal Sen nel 
Thomas Shepherd Na onal Waterways Conference 
Kim Schneider Our Mississippi 
Doug Blodge  The Nature Conservancy 
Bryan Hopkins The Nature Conservancy 
Randy Smith The Nature Conservancy 
Cheyenne Young The Nature Conservancy 
Jen Armstrong Waterways Council, Inc. 
Paul Rohde Waterways Council, Inc. 
Kirsten Wallace  Upper Mississippi River Basin Associa on 
Brian Stenquist Upper Mississippi River Basin Associa on 

 
A-2



Mark Ellis  Upper Mississippi River Basin Associa on 
Sam Hund Upper Mississippi River Basin Associa on 
Natalie Lenzen Upper Mississippi River Basin Associa on 
Ken Peterson Upper Mississippi River Basin Associa on 
Lauren Salvato  Upper Mississippi River Basin Associa on 
Andrew Stephenson  Upper Mississippi River Basin Associa on 
  
Minutes  
 
Chris Wieberg moved and Grant Wilson seconded a mo on to approve the dra  minutes of the  
October 24, 2023 UMRBA quarterly mee ng as provided in the agenda packet.  The mo on was approved 
unanimously.    
 
Execu ve Director’s Report 
 
Kirsten Wallace pointed to the Execu ve Director’s report in the agenda packet for a summary of the 
Associa on’s work efforts since the October 2023 mee ng.  Wallace elaborated on the following key 
events and UMRBA products: 
 
 UMRBA has invested considerable staff resources advoca ng for UMRBA’s priori es in the 

forthcoming Water Resources Development Act as well as the 2024 and 2025 federal appropria ons 
measures.  

 The Na onal Waterways Founda on and Waterways Council released renewed economic profiles of 
the inland waterways for states that border the rivers.  The reports are accessible here:  
h ps://na onalwaterwaysfounda on.org/founda on-studies/economic-impact-by-state.     

 On January 9, 2024, UMRBA published the report tled, How Clean is the River?  The report finds 
that water quality between 1989 and 2018 has generally improved, while there are pollutants of 
concern that have varying trends.  The results support UMRBA’s current focus on nutrients, chloride, 
and emerging contaminants as well as unified, Clean Water Act-focused monitoring on the river.  the 
report is available here:  h ps://umrba.org/howcleanriver  

 UMRBA is partnering with the University of Minnesota Ins tute on the Environment (IonE) and the 
Na onal Weather Service as they combine several exis ng models into downscale hydroclima c 
predic ons for the Upper Mississippi River basin.  As a partner to them, UMRBA convened three 
facilitated mee ngs during November 2023 and December 2023 to increase the usability of the 
hydroclima c forecasts and iden fy effec ve product delivery mechanisms to facilitate usability of 
hydroclima c forecasts.  

 
UMRBA Personnel Manual 
 
Wallace reported that the UMRBA Board has established a renewed organiza onal structure and 
compensa on system for the Associa on.  On behalf of the Associa on’s staff, Wallace expressed 
gra tude to the Board for be er posi oning the Associa on to maintain our strong team of staff and to 
grow our team.  On February 22, 2024, Wallace submi ed to the Board a revised dra  Personnel Manual 
capturing the renewed compensa on rates as well as the Board’s new established processes for annual 
reviews and adjustments.  In response, Wade Strickland moved and Chris Weiberg seconded a mo on to 

 
A-3



amend UMRBA’s Personnel Manual in accordance with the annotated version provided to the Board on 
February 22, 2024 by Wallace.  The mo on was approved unanimously. 
 
UMRBA Administra ve Protocols 
 
Wallace explained that UMRBA has long held informal protocols for accoun ng of the Associa on’s i) 
equipment and ii) grants, coopera ve agreements and contracts.  In the recent process of finalizing a 
coopera ve agreement, USEPA requested formal documenta on of the Board’s approval of these 
protocols.  In response to Wallace’s request, Tim Hall moved and Grant Wilson seconded a mo on to 
accept the proposed administra ve protocols related to equipment and grants, coopera ve agreements, 
and contracts as provided to the Board on February 22, 2024 by Kirsten Wallace.  The mo on was 
approved unanimously. 
 
UMRBA Financial Report 
 
Wallace pointed to UMRBA’s October 2023 through December 2023 financial statements provided on 
pages B-9 to B-17 of the agenda packet.  Chris Wieberg moved and Wade Strickland seconded the mo on 
to accept the Associa on’s budget report and balance sheet as included in the agenda packet.  The 
mo on was approved unanimously. 
 
UMRBA Board Chair Rota on 
 
Kirsten Wallace thanked Rick Pohlman for his service as Board Chair over the past year.  Chris Wieberg 
moved and Tim Hall seconded a mo on to nominate Grant Wilson to serve as UMRBA Chair, Wade 
Strickland to serve as UMRBA Vice Chair, and Jason Tidemann to serve as UMRBA Treasurer.  The mo on 
for all three nomina ons carried unanimously by voice vote. 
 
Interbasin Diversion Consulta on 
 
Kirsten Wallace explained that the Governors’ 1989 Upper Mississippi River Basin Charter sets forth a 
no fica on and consulta on process for any new or increased water diversion out of the basin that would 
exceed an average of 5 million gallons per day during any 30-day period.  At their February annual 
mee ngs, UMRBA members are to report on any qualifying diversion requests.  The UMRBA member 
states reported as follows: 
 

Illinois — Rick Pohlman — no diversions to report 
Iowa — Tim Hall — no diversions to report 
Minnesota — Grant Wilson — no diversions to report 
Missouri — Chris Weiberg — no diversions to report 
Wisconsin — Wade Strickland — no diversions to report 

 
Pohlman directed Kirsten Wallace to send le ers to the Governors repor ng the results of the annual 
diversion consulta on. 
 
 
 
 
 

 
A-4



Upper Mississippi River Basin Hydrologic Outlook 
 
Mike Welvaert provided an outlook for the poten al of spring flooding or drought in the Upper Mississippi 
River and in the watershed in spring 2024.  Welvaert announced that NWS North Central River Forecast 
Center published the spring outlook in a storymap, linked here:  
h ps://storymaps.arcgis.com/stories/746318e235604583934a78c639e19946.  Welvaert highlighted key 
messages from the outlook. 
 
Naviga on Water Level Forecas ng in the St. Louis District 
 
Joan Stemler presented an overview of low water condi ons and opera ons in the St. Louis District.  In 
summer 2024, the Mississippi River surpassed 10 daily low water level records at the St. Louis gage and 20 
daily low water level records (occurring consecu vely) in September.  Stemler reported on the St. Louis 
District’s low water opera ons, par cularly in the including related to the approved devia on to hold the 
Mel Price pool to 0.5 feet above the maximum regulated pool.  The extra water storage can be used to 
provide a pulse of water to free grounded tows, if necessary.  The Corps will incorporate these low-water 
opera ons into the District’s Water Control Manual.  Stemler discussed planned ac ons should low water 
condi ons con nue. 
 
Inland Waterway Trust Fund 
 
Jen Armstrong provided an overview of the status and projec ons of the Inland Waterways Trust Fund 
(IWTF), which provides a 35 percent cost-share match to the new construc on and major rehabilita on of 
inland waterways projects.  Between FY 2014 to 2023, seven lock replacement projects were funding 
through regular appropria ons; 90 percent of the appropriated funding were consumed by four projects, 
three of which are ongoing today.  The Infrastructure Investment and Jobs Act (IIJA) started two new 
inland waterways construc on projects, including L&D 25. 
 
The cumula ve authorized costs of the ongoing projects and cost overruns of several projects that were 
intended to be fully funded in the IIJA is $3.13 billion.  However, cost overruns for several reasons has 
increased the es mated costs for the projects to $7.84 billion.  Accoun ng for funds received, the 
remaining costs to complete the ongoing projects is $2.61 billion.  Armstrong noted that these costs are 
an cipated to con nue to increase.  As an example, the current es mated cost of L&D 25 is listed as $1.5 
billion, however that cost will need to be adjusted upward given the Administra on’s decision not to allow 
for early contractor involvement and con nuing contracts. 
 
Armstrong explained that the $2.61 billion balance exceeds the capacity of the IWTF’s reserves.  If the 
Corps received $290 million annually for inland naviga on construc on projects, it would take 9 years to 
fund the known remaining costs for all ongoing construc on projects.  Incremental funding and long 
project implementa on melines increase overall project cost and delays the benefits of the project. 
 
Armstrong put forward that there is no capability for NESP lock moderniza on projects in FY 2025 that can 
be supported with what is available in the IWTF given the other inland naviga on construc on needs.  No 
new starts can be accommodated un l some of the ongoing projects are completed.  The impact of 
star ng new projects is that the costs for all inland naviga on projects be on the order of magnitude of 
new construc on project at Olmstead L&D, which cost over $3 billion. 
 

 
A-5



Armstrong explained the Waterways Council’s request to Congress that the construc on cost share for 
inland waterways projects funded by the IIJA to remain fully federally funded.  Waterways Council remains 
commi ed to defending against adverse ini a ves, such as user fees or taxes, to resolve the discrepancy 
between revenues to the IWTF and the cost-share expense demands. 
 
In follow up to a ques on from Brian Stenquist, Armstrong explained that Corps Headquarters is renewing 
the inland naviga on capital investment strategy.  The strategy shall provide a near-term and 10-year 
implementa on schedule with an cipated costs in each year. 
  
Upper Mississippi River Restora on Program  
 
Marshall Plumley said UMRR has received $55 million in FY 2023 for the first me and an cipates 
receiving that same appropria on in FY 2024.  The program has the poten al to expand further following 
Congress’s ac on in WRDA 2022 that increased its annual authorized appropria on to $90 million –  
i.e., $75 million for HREPs and $15 million for LTRM.  Plumley applauded the partnership for this 
recogni on by Congress.   
 
Plumley reported on several ongoing efforts, including strategic planning, LTRM implementa on planning, 
planning for a UMRR workshop, HREP selec on, and topobathy acquisi on.  Plumley reviewed the 
ongoing implementa on of HREPs in each of the three UMR Corps Districts.  Plumley elaborated on the 
topobathy acquisi on; the vision is for a systemic acquisi on of cri cal eleva on datasets to allow 
partners and resource managers to be er study the priority science, restora on, and management needs 
of the UMRS. 
 
Naviga on and Ecosystem Sustainability Program 
 
Andrew Goodall provided an update on the progress of NESP in advancing programma c ac vi es, 
hos ng groundbreakings, and advancing the naviga on and ecosystem projects.  NESP currently has 18 
ongoing projects; 18 projects are ecosystem-related investments and 13 are naviga on-related 
investments.  Highlights are as follows: 
 
 L&D 22 fish passage:  Design for the en re project is scheduled to be completed in April 2024.  A 

construc on award is planned to occur before September 2024.  Pre-construc on monitoring 
con nues that will inform adap ve management goals. 

 L&D 25 1,200-foot chamber:  Design work for L&D 25 is an cipated to be complete in June 2026.  
Following the decision not to allow for early contractor involvement/con nuing contractors, the 
Corps has recently segmented the design into smaller packages for bulkheads and other advance 
items.  Phase 1 construc on contract is scheduled to be completed in 2024.  The bulkhead 
fabrica on contract was awarded just yesterday – i.e., February 26, 2024.  Goodall confirmed that 
the cer fied total project cost for L&D 25 will be released soon. 

 La Grange L&D 1,200-foot chamber:  The design of the addi on of a 1,200-foot lock chamber at La 
Grange L&D is an cipated to be completed in FY 2026.  The Corps is scheduled to complete the 35 
percent design phase in the 2024 calendar year. 

 
In response to a ques on from Rick Pohlman, Goodall confirmed that the Corps is prepared with smaller 
construc on packages for the La Grange L&D project for when there are funding opportuni es. 
 

 
A-6



Minnesota Invasive Carp Management 
 
Kelly Pennington explained that the migra on of invasive carp upstream on the Mississippi River into 
Minnesota waters is facilitated by high water events, par cularly in 2019 and 2023.  Data collected from 
captured invasive carp suggest that the invasive carp were produced downstream.  More than 40 tagged 
fish were tracked moving into Minnesota past open dams during 2023 flooding.  Pennington pointed out 
that, which lock deterrents can help reduce invasive species passage through the lock, invasive carp can 
s ll migrate through the lock spillways when the gates are open (and the gates are opened during 
flooding). 
 
Minnesota DNR has been ac vely managing invasive carp since the early 2000s through a variety of 
means.  Pennington announced that, in addi on to various state and federal funding sources, the 
Minnesota Lessard-Sams Outdoor Heritage Council allocated $12 million to a carp barrier on the 
Mississippi River at L&D 5. 
 
In 2024, Minnesota DNR updated its invasive carp management ac on plan in light of increased captures 
of invasive carp (associated with high water events) and new technologies, methods, and knowledge.  The 
Minnesota DNR employed a structured decision making process that was facilitated by USGS and involved 
technical experts and stakeholders from more than 12 organiza ons.  Minnesota DNR concluded that no 
one ac on is sufficient to prevent and manage invasive carp.  Pennington described the 2024 ac on plan’s 
five key elements and the associated ac ons.  The key elements are monitoring to support response 
ac ons, preven on and deterrence, response prepara on, management and control, and communica on, 
outreach, and coordina on. 
 
Rick Pohlman and Wade Strickland expressed apprecia on for the briefing and acknowledged similar 
challenges within their respec ve states.  In response to a ques on from Strickland about selec ve 
deterrents, Grace Loppnow explained that preliminary data indicate that electric barriers have a 90 
percent efficacy of deterring invasive carp (without impac ng na ve fish species) and acous c barriers 
have a 50 percent efficacy. 
 
In response to a ques on from Brian Stenquist, Pennington and Loppnow said other invasive species that 
might warrant interstate, federal-state collabora on are northern snakehead and Prussian carp.  In 
response to a ques on from Mark Ellis, Loppnow stated that Minnesota DNR is collabora ng with USGS to 
develop a FluEgg model for each Mississippi River pool located in Minnesota.  The models should be 
available by the end of calendar year 2024.  In response to a ques on from Loren Wobig, Loppnow said the 
University of Minnesota – Duluth is researching the efficacy of carbon dioxide as a deterrent to invasive 
carp migra on.  It is not as selec ve to invasive carp but is s ll being considered as a deterrent tool.   
 
In response to a ques on from Jill Cra on, Loppnow explained that Minnesota DNR is focusing this year 
on modeling poten al reproduc on areas as a means for informing work decisions (e.g., disrup ng 
spawning), collec ng monitoring data, and evalua ng the efficacy of deterrent op ons that are selec ve 
to na ve fish or that op mize flow through spillway gates.  Pennington added that Minnesota DNR is 
coordina ng with the Corp for design and engineering exper se on a poten al deterrent at L&D 5. 
 
Minnesota Wetlands Status and Trends 
 
Amy Kendig provided contextual informa on of Minnesota’s wetlands loss from 1800 to 1984 (about 50 
percent statewide and 18 percent occurring in the Prairie Pothole Region) and wetlands protec on 

 
A-7



regula ons in Minnesota.  The Minnesota Wetland Conserva on Act of 1981 created a “no-net loss” 
policy for wetlands.  Kendig explained that the quan ty and extend of wetlands challenging to assess and 
track for mul ple reasons.  
 
Minnesota DNR created a wetlands status and trends monitoring program that was modeled from 
USFWS’s wetlands monitoring.  Since 2006, Minnesota has been monitoring 1,200 – 3,750 one-square 
mile plots every three years.  This sample is extrapolated to es mate statewide status and trends. 
 
Minnesota DNR’s monitoring data suggests that the drivers for change in wetlands quan ty and extent are 
occurring because of restora on, filling or drainage, excava on or inunda on, beaver ac vi es, landslides, 
and stream accre on or movement.  Indirect factors include subsurface le drainage (without visual 
evidence), long term climate change, and lowered ground table levels. 
 
The recent monitoring observed a net gain of 43,389 acres of wetland area between 2006 and 2020.  
Kendig provided more detail informa on about the gains and losses per wetland type and sources of the 
gains or losses.  The gains in wetlands area has significantly increased during the latest monitoring cycle -
i.e., approximately 25,900 acres from 2015 to 2020. 
 
Kendig concluded that, over a 15-year period, Minnesota gained more wetlands than it lost and wetland 
losses have generally declined over me.  Direct gains increased with more antecedent precipita on.  
Minnesota DNR is interested in explore the reason for that.  Does more precipita on ini ate wetland 
crea on or restora on?  Does more precipita on make wetland crea on or restora on more obvious?  Or 
is there a another or different reason? 
 
Gulf Hypoxia Program 
 
Hypoxia Task Force 2023 Report to Congress 
 
Jake Greif provided an overview of the Mississippi River/Gulf of Mexico Hypoxia Task Force, including its 
origins, scope, ac on plans, and goals.   
 
Graif reported that, on November 30, 2023, USEPA transmi ed to Congress the most recent report on the 
River/Gulf of Mexico Hypoxia Task Force.  The report is available at the following web link:  
h ps://www.epa.gov/system/files/documents/2023-11/10305_2023-h -report-to-congress_508.pdf.  
 
Graif welcomed partners to explore the USEPA’s web page for the Task Force (h ps://www.epa.gov/ms-h ).  
Monthly newsle ers for the Task Force are available at h ps://www.epa.gov/ms-h /hypoxia-task-force-
newsle ers.  The web page includes a link to sign up for receiving the newsle ers to individual emails. 
 
UMR Sub-Basin Commi ee Work Plan 
 
Lauren Salvato reported that USEPA approved UMRBA’s work plan for suppor ng the Hypoxia Task Force 
Upper Mississippi River Sub-Basin Commi ee, including the following tasks: 
 
 Create an integrated Upper Mississippi River Nutrient Reduc on Strategy, compiling separate state 

nutrient reduc on strategies and iden fying important interstate ac ons. 

 
A-8



 Develop an Upper Mississippi River Basin Nutrient Reduc on Adap ve Management Framework, 
evalua ng implementa on of important interstate ac ons to reduce nutrient pollu on in the Upper 
Mississippi River and incorpora ng insights into ongoing implementa on efforts. 

 Create an Upper Mississippi River Interstate Communica ons Strategy, communica ng with 
stakeholders and other actors in the basin about important interstate ac ons and to gain their 
commitment to ongoing implementa on efforts. 

 Maintain and enhance interstate collabora on by suppor ng the HTF Sub-Basin Commi ee, 
including its various work teams. 

 Integrate important interstate ac ons for reducing nutrient pollu on in the Upper Mississippi River 
with other important interstate ac ons such as flood mi ga on and resilience planning. 

 
Other Business 
 
Future Mee ng Schedule  
 
May 2024 in Davenport, Iowa 

 UMRBA Quarterly Mee ng – May 21 

 UMRR Coordina ng Commi ee quarterly mee ng – May 22 
 
August 2024 in St. Paul, Minnesota 

 UMRBA Quarterly Mee ng – August 6 

 UMRR Coordina ng Commi ee quarterly mee ng – August 7 
 
November 2024 in St. Louis, Missouri  

 UMRBA Quarterly Mee ng – November 19 

 UMRR Coordina ng Commi ee quarterly mee ng – November 20 
 
With no further business, the mee ng adjourned at 2:25 p.m. 
 

 
A-9



ATTACHMENT B 
 

Executive Director’s Report 
 

 Executive Director’s Report (B-1 to B-7) 

 UMRBA FY 2025 USACE Appropriations Priorities Letter 
(5/2/2024) (B-8 to B-10) 

 Interstate Council on Water Policy’s Multi-signatory Letter 
(2/23/2024) (B-11 to B-16) 

 Treasurer’s Quarterly Statement (5/6/2024) (B-17) 

 FY 2024 Profit and Loss Statement (5/7/2024) (B-18 to B-20) 

 Balance Sheet (5/7/2024) (B-21 to B-22) 

 

 

 
 



 
 

Advocacy 
 
FY 2025 Appropriations  
 
UMRBA has submitted to the Congress the following FY 2024 appropriations requests:  $187 million for 
the Navigation and Ecosystem Sustainability Program (NESP), $55 million for the Upper Mississippi River 
Restoration (UMRR) program, $1.835 million for a UMR flow frequency study.  In addition, UMRBA called 
for full utilization of the Inland Waterways Trust Fund available monies and full funding of the Corps’ 
capability to maintain the 9-foot navigation channel on the Upper Mississippi River System.  UMRBA 
submitted appropriations requests through members’ online portals, letters to individual member offices 
in support of those requests, and letters to the House and Senate Appropriations Committees.   
 
An updated appropriation request letter which includes the initial letter addressed to the Senate 
Appropriations Committee is provided on pages B-8 to B-10 of the agenda packet.  This letter includes an 
appropriation request of $50 million for NESP to implement ecosystem-related projects and 
programmatic activities.  In response to the Corps capability estimate provided to Congress, UMRBA 
updated its support for that capability estimate of $62 million for navigation-related investments and 
$125 million for ecosystem-related investments.   
 
UMRBA, staff joined by UMRBA Board members Loren Wobig and Wade Strickland, met with USACE 
Civil Works Director Eddie Belk and USACE Headquarters leadership to convey these priorities and 
provide UMRBA’s perspective on the needs and opportunities for partnership implementation. 
 
UMRBA joined the Interstate Council on Water Policy’s multi-signatory letter, dated February 23, 2024, 
to the House and Senate Appropriations Committees requesting FY 2024 appropriations of $33 million 
for USGS federal priority streamgages, $68 million for USGS Cooperative Matching Funds (including  
$33 million for streamgage support), and $35 million for Next Generation Water Observing System and 
data delivery modernization.  The letter to the House Appropriations Committee provided on pages B-
11 to B-16 of the agenda packet. 
 
Commercial Navigation 
 
Inland Waterways Users Board 
 
UMRBA staff attended the April 11, 2024 Inland Waterways Users Board (IWUB) meeting in Springfield, 
Virginia.  The meeting included routine updates of the Inland Waterway Trust Fund, USACE navigation 
program fiscal status, and ongoing navigation projects that are cost-shared using the Inland Waterway 
Trust Fund monies.  As part of the latter report, the Rock Island and St. Louis Districts reported on the 
L&D 25 and La Grange lock modernization projects.  Additionally, the Mississippi Valley Division 
reported on its low water actions in 20223 on the Mississippi River. 
 
U.S. Department of Agriculture NESP L&D 25 Event 
 
On May 3, 2024, the U.S. Secretary of Agriculture Secretary Tom Vilsack was joined by U.S. Assistant 
Secretary of the Army for Civil Works Michael Connor, U.S. Congresswoman Nikki Budzinksi (D-IL-13), 
National Corn Growers Association, and Soybean Growers Association in highlighting the investments 

Executive Director’s Report 
May 2024 

B-1



secured for the Navigation and Ecosystem Sustainability Program from the Biden-Harris Administration’s 
Infrastructure Investments and Jobs Act.  Secretary Vilsack will also highlight other Biden-Harris 
Administration efforts to help U.S. agricultural exporters and producers strengthen their presence in 
existing markets and open new market opportunities around the world, as well as strengthen local and 
regional supply chains in the states along the Mississippi River and across the country.  
 
Ecosystem Health 
 
Native American Fish and Wildlife Society 
  
UMRBA staff attended the Native American Fish and Wildlife Society National Conference in Welsh, 
Minnesota on May 14-16, 2024.  The conference theme is “Sovereignty to Sustainability – Echoing our 
Elders and Nurturing our Next Seven Generations.”  Select agenda topics related to fisheries 
management, climate, biodiversity, tribal ecological knowledge, wildlife management, threatened and 
endangered species, and federal partnerships. 
 
Policy and Programmatic Interagency Coordination 
  
UMRR Coordinating Committee Meeting  
 
The UMRR Coordinating Committee met on February 28, 2024 virtually.  The agenda involved 
programmatic briefings regarding accomplishments and progress related to habitat rehabilitation and 
enhancement projects (HREPs), long term resource monitoring, and communications.  The Committee 
also convened a facilitated exercise to get input to UMRR’s next strategic planning process. 
 
NESP Coordinating Committee Meetings 
 
The Navigation and Ecosystem Sustainability Program (NESP) Coordinating Committee met in-person on 
March 21, 2024 in the Quad Cities.  In addition to this public-facing session, the Committee also 
convenes monthly meetings to advance programmatic priorities.  Recent discussions have focused on a 
strategic planning framework and systemic and reach planning.  
 
Programmatic Strategic Planning 
 
Upper Mississippi River Restoration Program 
 
The UMRR Coordinating Committee convened meetings to refine a process for developing the next 
strategic plan for UMRR.  With advice from an “independent” facilitator, an interagency team of 
program leaders will to determine a planning process and scope.  The leadership team has agreed that 
the process shall employ a robust public participation, including through UMRR Coordinating 
Committee quarterly meetings, for exploration, discussion, review, and feedback on emerging ideas. 
 
Navigation and Ecosystem Sustainability Program 
 
An ad hoc group of the Navigation and Ecosystem Sustainability Program Consultation Committee is 
developing a framework to guide the purpose, objectives, and process for strategic planning.  UMRBA 
staff are participating in the ad hoc group. 
 
 
 
 

B-2



Communications 
 
Communications and Outreach Team 
 
UMRBA staff participated in the UMRR Communication and Outreach Team’s (COT) March 4, 2024 and 
April 3, 2024 meetings.  Topics included employing a photo contest, social media events, and updating 
UMRR related material at current kiosks/interpretive stations along the UMRS.  
 
Ecological Sustainability and Restoration 
 
UMRR Workshop 
 
On May 7-9, 2024, UMRR convened a workshop to bring together partners who work on, and participate 
in, the program’s habitat rehabilitation and enhancement projects and long term resource monitoring 
efforts.  Participants considered ways to improve restoration techniques in light of lessons learned from 
constructed habitat projects as well as newly learned information about climate change and other 
factors affecting the health and resilience of the river’s ecosystem.  The workshop focused on modeling 
applications to improve decision making across the UMRS, the design of habitat projects, as well as 
discuss various emerging programmatic efforts, such as advancing environmental justice strategies. 
 
UMRBA is providing meeting design support services for the workshop, working with an ad hoc team 
assembled by the UMRR Program Manager and the UMRR Coordinating Committee. 
 
Systemic/Reach Planning 
 
UMRBA staff are participating in the Navigation and Ecosystem Sustainability Program’s System 
Planning Team, which is validating system-wide ecosystem objectives and developing a process to guide 
four reach planning teams in their more refined development of restoration targets. 
 
UMRBA Floodplain Reconnection Project 
 
With financial support from the USGS Midwest Climate Adaptation Science Center, UMRBA is 
implementing a project to develop foundational planning and learning objectives that will help facilitate 
future collaborations between and among efforts to improve i) flood conveyance and storage and  
ii) ecological processes and functions.  As part of the project, on March 28, 2024, UMRBA staff provided 
a briefing to the Upper Mississippi River Conservation Committee and requested its members input on 
an initial set of learning questions related to understanding flood conveyance and storage, ecological 
processes and habitat improvement, water quality enhancement, social equity, and climate change. 
 
Interagency Meetings 
 
UMRBA staff participated in the following meetings: 
 
 Upper Mississippi River Conservation Committee’s annual meeting (March 26-28, 2024) 

 Monthly meetings of the Navigation and Ecosystem Sustainability Program regarding the ongoing 
design of eight mooring facilities 

 
 
 
 

B-3



Hazardous Spills Coordination, Mapping, and Planning 
 
Oil Pollution Act (OPA) Planning and Mapping 
 
UMRBA staff have completed most of the Wisconsin statewide Inland Sensitivity Atlas (ISA) update and 
have begun working on Minnesota updates.  Staff have completed a new jurisdictional boundary layer for 
the region.  This data will help clarify agency jurisdictions and quicken the establishment of incident 
command during a response.  UMRBA incorporated updates into the regional database that it developed 
for Wisconsin as well as updates received from the Great Lakes Commission (GLC) for Ohio and Indiana. 
 
Staff participated in monthly Mapping Group meetings on March 4, April 1, and May 6, 2024.  Staff also 
participated in Inland Zone Planning calls on March 21, April 18, and May 16, 2024. 
 
UMRBA provided general support for spill response planning in the Upper Mississippi River, 
Minneapolis/St. Paul, and Red River sub-areas.  UMRBA took part remotely in the Great Rivers Sub-area 
planning meeting on March 7, 2024.  On May 13, 2024, staff participated in a meeting to continue 
development of a hazardous chemical release exercise to be held in Crookston, Minnesota on June 11, 
2024. 
 
UMRBA supported the Regional Response Team (RRT) 5 meetings held at Minnesota PCA in St. Paul, MN 
on April 30 and May 1, 2024. 
 
Upper Mississippi River Hazardous Spills Coordination Group (UMR Spills Group) 
 
The UMR Spills Group held its spring meeting at Minnesota PCA in St. Paul, MN on May 2, 2024.  The 
Group discussed various response-related planning activities scheduled throughout the next year, 
including the beginning the development of a response strategy carried out on a barge in the main stem 
of the Mississippi River.   
 
Staff took part in a Quad Cities spill response exercise planning meeting on April 9, 2024.  The exercise is 
scheduled for June 24-26 in Bettendorf, Iowa.  The event will include shoreline cleanup training, response 
technique training, and a tabletop exercise covering the scenario of a spill resulting from a train and barge 
collision near Le Claire, Iowa. 
 
Water Quality  
   
Water Quality Committees 
 
The UMRBA Water Quality Executive Committee met virtually on March 6, 2024.  The agenda topics 
included UMRBA’s renewed organizational structure and near-term hiring plans, UMRBA water quality-
related work plan in FYs 2026 to 2026, states’ water quality standards for the UMRS, and the potential 
recommendation for a new UMRBA nutrient committee.  
 
The UMRBA Water Quality Task Force met virtually on April 15, 2024 to discuss potential modifications 
to the Upper Mississippi River Interstate Water Quality Monitoring Plan and to discuss preferences for a 
multi-state water quality database. 
 
Plastics Pollution 
 
On March 12, 2024, USEPA held its second Mississippi River Plastic Pollution Research Project Workshop 
in St. Paul, Minnesota.  UMRBA staff participated in the workshop, which included a structured decision 

B-4



making exercise to develop goals, objectives, and measures of success for plastic pollution reduction on 
the Mississippi River. 
 
Nutrient-Related Communications 
 
Half Moon convened a virtual seminar on March 11, 2024 related to nutrient reductions, with topics 
including nutrients of concern, nutrient transport, deposition and effects, the Hypoxia Task Force, and 
state nutrient reduction strategies.  UMRBA staff present on work occurring at the sub-basin scale. 
 
Meetings and Conferences 
 
UMRBA staff participated in the following conferences and partnership meetings: 
 
 Missouri Nonpoint Source Management Symposium (April 16, 2024)  

 Iowa Water Resources Coordinating Council meeting (March 26, 2024) 

 Hypoxia Task Force Coordinating Committee monthly meetings and communications work group 
(March 21, 2024 and May 2, 2024) 

 
Water Quantity (Flood and Drought Resilience) 
 
NOAA National Integrated Drought Information System (NIDIS) Executive Council 
 
UMRBA staff participated in the National Integrated Drought Information System (NIDIS) Executive 
Council meeting on April 25, 2024 in Washington, D.C.  Council members shared relevant programmatic 
efforts, including scientific advancements, related to drought resilience.  The Council discussed relevant 
legislative and Administration updates, partnership opportunities through the Regional Drought Early 
Warning Systems (DEWS).  The National Weather Service provided a briefing on its new 10-year 
strategic plan, and illuminated ways in which NIDIS and partners might help advance the plan. 
 
Partnership Collaboration 
 
Mississippi River Cities and Towns Initiative 
 
UMRBA staff attended the Mississippi River Cities and Towns Initiative’s (MRCTI’s) reception on  
March 5, 2024 in Washington, D.C.  The reception hosted remarks from Senator John Boozman and 
Rep. Derrick Van Orden. 
 
Interstate Council on Water Policy 
 
The Interstate Council on Water Policy (ICWP) co-hosted with the Western States Water Council  
the Annual Roundtable on March 13-14, 2024.  The Roundtable was convened in Washington, D.C.   
In addition to association business meetings, the Roundtable hosted panels of various federal agencies 
regarding their water-related programs and projects.  In addition, the Roundtable hosted a 
Congressional Panel featuring the various authorizing and appropriations committees. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

B-5



Title VI Informal Resolution Agreement 
 
UMRBA and USEPA executed a voluntary informal resolution agreement in response to a claim of a 
violation of Title VI of the Civil Rights Act.  The work will involve: 
 
 Establishing a notice of nondiscrimination and grievance procedures 

 

 Designating a nondiscrimination coordinator 
 

 Creating a public participation plan with standard operating procedures for UMRBA’s quarterly 
meetings and other publicly held meetings 

 

 Standardizing approaches for ensuring meaningful access to all UMRBA programs, services, and 
activities for individuals with limited English proficiency and individuals with disabilities. 

 

 Establishing a training plan for UMRBA staff and contractors, as appropriate, on UMRBA 
nondiscrimination and accessibility policies and procedures. 

 
Financial Report 
 
Office Relocation 
 
UMRBA is scheduled to implement an office relocation before July 1, 2024.  On April 19, the UMRBA 
Board provided the UMRBA Executive Director with the authority to: 
 

i) Enter into a seven-year lease agreement with MSP Braemer Equities for UMRBA’s new office 
suite per the terms of agreement that was provided to the Board on April 16, 2024.  

ii) Purchase furnishings from Fluid Interiors for UMRBA’s new office lease of no more than 
$65,000 per the quote provided to the Board on April 8, 2024. 

 
Chris Wieberg moved and Tim Hall seconded the motion to provide these authorities, which were 
unanimously approved by all five state representatives or alternates. 
 
Starting July 1, 2024, the UMRBA mailing address will be: 7900 W. 78th Street, Suite 380, Edina MN 
55439 
 
Mississippi River Partnership Meeting 
 
America’s Watershed Initiative (AWI) and The Nature Conservancy (TNC) are co-hosting a Mississippi 
River Watershed Partnership Meeting in St. Louis on June 25-27, 2024.  AWI and TNC have requested 
design and facilitation support from UMRBA.  This includes working with the team assembled by AWI 
and TNC to define meeting objectives and design a meeting agenda and support materials.  On behalf of 
UMRBA, Brian Stenquist will also emcee the event.  Following the event, UMRBA will provide review of 
post-meeting materials.   
 
In response to a request from Kirsten Wallace, the UMRBA Board provided the UMRBA Executive 
Director with the authority to enter into a contract of up to $12,000 with the America’s Watershed 
Initiative for the event design and facilitation support.  Wade Strickland moved and Tim Hall seconded 
the motion to provide this authority, which was unanimously approved by all five state representatives 
or alternates. 
 
 
 

B-6



UMRBA Financial Report 
 
Attached as page B-17 is UMRBA Treasurer Jason Tidemann’s statement regarding his review of 
UMRBA’s financial statement for the period of January 1, 2024, to March 31, 2024. 
 
Attached as pages B-18 to B-22 are UMRBA’s 2023 budget reports and balance sheet.  As of May 7, 
2024, ordinary income for FY 2024 totaled $820,326.33 and expenses totaled $925,303.74 for 
net ordinary income of $-104,977.41.  As of this date, UMRBA’s cash assets totaled $178,375.92. 
 

B-7



B-8



B-9



B-10



Coalition Support for USGS Streamgage 
Networks and Modernization  

Congressman Mike Simpson, Chair 

Congresswoman Chellie Pingree, Ranking Member 

House Appropriations Subcommittee on Interior, Environment & Related Agencies 

2363 Rayburn House Office Building 

Washington, D.C. 20515 

February 23, 2024 

RE: WATER DATA & SCIENCE PROGRAM FUNDING 

Interior Department Appropriations for FY2025 

Summary of Coalition’s Requests for FY2025: 
Federal Priorities Streamgages = $33.0 M 

Cooperative Matching Funds Program = $68M 
(includes $33M streamgage support and studies) 

NGWOS/data modernization = $35M 

Dear Chairman Simpson and Ranking Member Pingree: 

Our coalition of 99 water management and use stakeholders requests your support to 

sufficiently fund the United States Geological Survey’s (USGS) Federal Priorities Streamgage 

network and related programs for the upcoming Fiscal Year (FY) 2025 budget 

appropriation.   

Our organizations rely heavily on these streamgages to make critical decisions about public 

safety, respond to extreme weather events, conservation and to support the nation’s 

economy. The information they provide is extensive and invaluable for managing, 

protecting, and planning to support and improve the resilience of the nation’s important 

water resource infrastructure. Funding for the network needs to keep pace with inflation so 

that the information from this network continues to be available for many different 

purposes.  

Our coalition’s funding request is summarized below. The final section of this letter 

explains in more detail why we as a nation need to adequately fund the network of 

streamgages. 

Summary of funding request 

Our broad coalition of state agencies, interstate commissions, associations, universities, 

non-governmental organizations, and private industry submit the FY 2025 USGS budget 

appropriation request as follows: $33M dedicated to Federal Priorities Streamgages, $68M 

for the Cooperative Matching Funds Program (including $33M for streamgage support) and 

$35M for Next Generation Water Observing System and data delivery modernization.  

B-11



Supporting details 

Federal Priority Streamgages (FPS) -- $33M 

Operational costs of the FPS network nationwide have grown by an average of 

approximately 5 percent per year since 2016, totaling $3M. With further inflation expected, 

operational costs are estimated to increase at least another 5-7 percent. As a result, the 

increased costs associated with the operation and physical maintenance and data services 

and distribution have resulted in a $1M per year shortfall since 2022. Our request for FY 

2025 FPS funding of $33M covers the costs of existing gages, precludes the loss of any 

streamgage sites, offsets the impact of inflation and allows for the installation of 30 new 

FPS sites to close the gap in streamflow data where they are crucially needed (see next 

section). 

Cooperative Matching Funds (CMF) Program -- $68M 

The USGS works with more than 1,400 partners nationwide (federal, state, tribal, local and 

non-governmental organizations) using CMF to jointly support additional streamgages that 

cannot be funded through the FPS. This matching program began as a 50/50 cost share but 

has seen the federal contributions decrease to less than 30 percent over time. Our request 

of $68 M for FY 2025 stands firm with last year’s request.1 These funds are needed to 

provide the required cooperative matching funds.  Of that, $33M is dedicated for the 

protection of the approximately 5,275 CMF-supported streamgages, already established 

and functioning nationwide.  

Next Generation Water Observing System (NGWOS) – $35M 

Our coalition appreciates Congress’ support of the Next Generation Water Observation 

System (NGWOS) at the same level as the past two years of $35M to allow to continue the 

NGWOS program as intended. Funding at this level for FY2025 would allow USGS to 

continue development of Integrated Water Science (IWS) tools and science, applicable 

nationwide, in the fifth of ten planned demonstration water basins.  

Why are USGS Streamgage network data especially important now? 

It is more important than ever for Congress to ensure adequate funding for the USGS 

Streamgage Program. Short duration high intensity precipitation events are increasing in 

occurrence and volume creating flooding issues across the country and adding 

unpredictability to communities’ abilities to plan for and fund water infrastructure 

investments. Extreme events such as flooding, drought and sea level rise in coastal regions 

1 See USGS FY2024 Streamgage Support Letter dated February 28, 2023: https://icwp.org/wp-
content/uploads/2023/04/USGS-Streamgage-Letter-FY2024_Senate-Approps_2.28.23.pdf  

B-12

https://icwp.org/wp-content/uploads/2023/04/USGS-Streamgage-Letter-FY2024_Senate-Approps_2.28.23.pdf
https://icwp.org/wp-content/uploads/2023/04/USGS-Streamgage-Letter-FY2024_Senate-Approps_2.28.23.pdf


are reasons why a robust streamgage network is an essential resource for water managers 

to plan and act under pressing conditions. 

Without increased funding to maintain the current network of USGS streamgage sites, we 

are less equipped to make informed decisions pertaining to navigation, flood and 

hurricane risk predictions, drought determinations, and water supply forecasts. 

Streamgage data are crucial for use in decision making tools to provide critical life and 

property saving information. They augment research management decisions, maintain 

water dependent infrastructure, and provide essential public health and environmental 

condition information. Insufficient funding seriously compromises our national ability to 

address federal, state, tribal, local socioeconomic issues, including international treaty 

obligations. 

The 2022 USGS Streamflow Monitoring Network analysis determined priority areas to 

maintain or improve coverage, resolution, and representation throughout the United 

States.2 This analysis identified gaps in network coverage that, if further built out by 

establishing new streamgage sites, would enhance resilience to extreme weather events. 

These areas include coastal watersheds to reduce flood risk, regions in 39 states that lack 

streamflow information to assess how local climate is affecting floods and droughts, and 

areas of the U.S. where water supply is vulnerable due to reduced snowpack conditions. 

Conclusion 

With your help and continued support, Congress can enable the USGS to fulfill its Water 

Resources Mission Area goals by adequately funding the Federal Priority Streamgages 

network, Cooperative Matching Funds program, and NGWOS to move water science into 

the 21st century.   

We are happy to answer your questions. For more background information about funding 

and the utility of the national streamflow information program from stakeholders’ 

perspectives, visit ICWP’s website: https://icwp.org/streamgage-support/. 

Please contact any of us or Beth Callaway at the Interstate Council on Water Policy at: 

beth@icwp.org or (307) 772-1999.  

CC: 
Appropriations Subcommittee Members  

Secretary of the Interior  

Director, Office of Management and Budget 

Director, US Geological Survey

2 Konrad, C.P., Anderson, S.W., Restivo, D.E., and David, J.E., 2022, Network Analysis of USGS 

Streamflow Gages: U.S. Geological Survey data release, https://doi.org/10.5066/P9C8NYTO. 

B-13

https://icwp.org/streamgage-support/
mailto:beth@icwp.org
https://doi.org/10.5066/P9C8NYTO


Organizations Signing on to FY 2025 Streamgage Support Letter (February 23, 2024) 

Organization Name 

Alabama Office of Water Resources Tom Littlepage 

America's Watershed Initiative Kimberly A. Lutz 

American Fisheries Society Douglas Austen 

American Rivers Ted Illston 

American Society of Civil Engineers Thomas W Smith 

American Water Resources Assn. Dresden Farrand 

American Water Works Assn. G. Tracy Mehan, III ED

American Whitewater Mark Singleton, ED 

Appalachian Mountain Club Susan Arnold 

Assoc of American State Geologists James Faulds 

Assoc of Calif Water Agencies Ian Lyle 

Assoc of Clean Water Administrators Mary Anne Nelson 

Assoc of Fish & Wildlife Agencies Kurt Thiede 

Association of Metropolitan Water 

Agencies 

Tom Dobbins 

Assoc of State Dam Safety Officials Lori Spragens 

Assoc of State Flood Plain Managers Chad Berginnis 

Bear River Commission Don Barnett 

Big Hole Watershed Committee Pedro Marques 

Big Horn River Alliance Anne Marie Emery 

Calif Sportfishing Protection Alliance Bill Jennings 

Cascade Water Alliance Ray Hoffman 

CDM Smith Timothy Feather 

Cobb County Marietta Water Authority Cole Blackwell 

Colo Riv Basin Salinity Control Forum Don Barnett 

Colorado Lake & Reservoir 

Management Assn. 

Suresh Niraula 

Delaware River Basin Commission Steve Tambini 

Environmental Defense Fund Steve Cochran 

Fly Fishers International Patrick Berry 

Freshwater Mollusk Conservation 

Society 

Steve McMurray 

Great Lakes Commission Erika Jensen 

Great Lakes Observing System Kelli Paige 

Hawaii Commission on Water 

Resource Management 

Kaleo Manuel 

Henry's Fork Foundation Brandon Hoffner 

Hoopa Tribal Land 

Management/Environmental 

Protection Agency 

Ken Norton 

B-14



Hydrological Services America Peter Ward 

Idaho Rivers United/Hydropower 

Reform Coalition 

Nic Nelson 

Idaho Water Users Assoc Paul Arrington 

Interstate Comm Potomac River Basin Michael Nardolilli 

Interstate Council on Water Policy Matt Unruh 

Kansas Water Office Connie Owen 

Kansas-Oklahoma Arkansas River 

Compact Commission 

Earnie Gilder 

KISTERS No. America Becca Emery 

Madison River Foundation Johnathan Malovich 

Metropolitan North Georgia Water 

Planning District 

Katherine Zitsch 

Mile High Flood District Colin Haggerty 

Minnesota DNR Katie Smith 

Missouri DNR Erin Fanning 

Montana Department of 

Environmental Quality  

Lindsey Krywaruchka 

Montana Department of Natural 

Resources and Conservation  

Anna Pakenham-Stevenson 

Montana Fish, Wildlife & Parks Bill Schenk 

Montana Trout Unlimited David Brooks 

Montana Watershed Coordination 

Council 

Ethan Kunard 

National Assoc of Flood & Stormwater 

Mgm't Agencies  

Sunny Simpkins 

National Assoc State Boating Law 

Admin 

John Fetterman 

National Audubon Society Julie Hill-Gabriel 

National Drought Mitigation Center Mark Svoboda 

National Ground Water Association Terry Morse 

National Hydrologic Warning Council Bruce Rindahl 

National Hydropower Association Malcolm Woolf 

National Society of Professional 

Surveyors 

Tim Burch 

National Water Resources Association Dale Nellor 

National Water Supply Alliance Dave Mitamura 

National Wildlife Federation Abby Tinsley 

Nebraska Department of Natural 

Resources 

Thomas Riley 

NEIWPCC Susan J. Sullivan 

North American Lake Management 

Society 

Kellie Merrell 

B-15



North Dakota Department of Water 

Resources 

Andrea Travnicek 

Ohio Riv Valley Water Sanitation 

Comm 

Richard Harrison 

Oklahoma Water Resources Board Julie Cunningham 

Oregon Water Resources Congress April Snell 

Phycological Society of America Eric Linton 

Red River Compact Administration Sue Lowry 

Republican Riv Compact 

Administration 

Thomas Riley 

Rivers Alliance of Connecticut Alicea Charamut 

Society of Wetland Scientists Loretta Battaglia 

Southest Kansas Groundwater 

Management Dist 3 

Mark Rude 

Southwest Tribal Fisheries 

Commission 

Adam Ringia 

Susquehanna River Basin Commission Andrew Dehoff 

Tacoma Water Scott Dewhirst 

The Nature Conservancy Jimmy Hague 

Three Rivers QUEST Melissa O'Neal 

Tri-State Water Resource Coalition Gail Melgren 

Trout Unlimited Kate Miller 

University of Georgia River Basin 

Center 

Sechindra Vallury/ Seth Wenger 

Upper Colo River Commission Chuck Collum 

Upper Miss River Basin Assoc Kirsten Wallace 

Upper Missouri Watershed Alliance Sherry Meador 

Virginia Dept. of Environmental 

Quality, Office of Water Supply 

William Cloe 

Washington St Water Resource Assoc Tom Myrum 

Water Environment Federation Walter Marlowe 

West Virginia Rivers Coalition Angie Rosser 

West Virginia Water Research Institute Paul Ziemkiewicz 

Western Landowners Alliance Leslie Allison 

Western States Water Council Tony Willardson 

Wild Salmon Center Jessica Helsley 

Wyoming State Engineer's Office Brandon Gebhart 

Wyoming Water Association Andrew Strike 

Wyoming Water Development Office Jason Mead 

Xylem Analytics North America Randy Hadland 

Yellowstone River Commission Brandon Gebhart 

B-16



Natalie Lenzen

From: Tidemann, Jason (DNR) <jason.tidemann@state.mn.us>
Sent: Monday, May 6, 2024 8:41 AM
To: Natalie Lenzen
Subject: RE: UMRBA January 1 - March 31 Treasurer Report

Hello Kirsten, 

As Treasurer, I have reviewed the monthly financial statements for the period 1/1/24-3/31/24. Activity reported on the 
Balance Sheet, Profit/Loss Budget Overview, Check Register, Visa statements and Open Invoices Report provide a 
reasonable and consistent representation of the monthly financial activity for the referenced period.  

Jason Tidemann 

From: Natalie Lenzen <nlenzen@umrba.org>  
Sent: Friday, May 3, 2024 10:59 AM 
To: Tidemann, Jason (DNR) <jason.tidemann@state.mn.us> 
Subject: UMRBA January 1 - March 31 Treasurer Report 

Jason – 

I would like to request your statement of review of our January 2024 through March 2024 financials for the Treasurer’s 
report in the May 21, 2024 UMRBA Board meeting packet.   

Please let me know if you have any questions or need any further information. 

Thank you, 
Natalie 

Natalie Lenzen 
Opera ons Manager | Upper Mississippi River Basin Associa on (UMRBA) 
7831 E. Bush Lake Rd., Suite 302, Bloomington, MN 55439 
651-224-2880 (main office) | 763-349-2049 (direct)
Find us online at www.umrba.org or Facebook 

This message may be from an external email source. 
Do not select links or open attachments unless verified. Report all suspicious emails to Minnesota IT Services Security Operations Center. 

B-17

67HB
Rectangle



Upper Mississippi River Basin Association
FY 2024 Profit & Loss Budget Overview

July 2023 - June 2024

Accrual Basis  Tuesday, May 7, 2024 09:38 AM GMT-05:00   1/3

TOTAL

ACTUAL BUDGET OVER BUDGET

Revenue

4000 State Dues

Illinois Dues 67,000.00 67,000.00 0.00

Iowa Dues 67,000.00 67,000.00 0.00

Minnesota Dues 67,000.00 67,000.00 0.00

Missouri Dues 67,000.00 67,000.00 0.00

Wisconsin Dues 67,000.00 67,000.00 0.00

WQ Assessment 108,000.00 108,000.00 0.00

Total 4000 State Dues 443,000.00 443,000.00 0.00

4100 Contracts and Grants

Interstate WQ Pilot 9,931.36 0.00 9,931.36

U.S. FWS 7,958.51 7,958.51

University of Minnesota 10,000.00 10,000.00

USACE (NESP) 30,537.17 200,000.00 -169,462.83

USACE (UMRR) 39,400.00 135,500.00 -96,100.00

USEPA (HTF) 75,000.00 -75,000.00

USEPA (OPA) 221,066.47 240,000.00 -18,933.53

USEPA (OWOW) 36,198.22 80,000.00 -43,801.78

USGS Nature-Based Solutions 50,000.00 -50,000.00

Total 4100 Contracts and Grants 355,091.73 780,500.00 -425,408.27

4200 Interest Income

Short Term Interest

Short Term (CD) 14,552.02 17,300.00 -2,747.98

Short Term (Checking) 4,235.46 6,000.00 -1,764.54

Short Term (Savings) 0.00 0.00

Short Term (Sweep) 2,404.69 8,400.00 -5,995.31

Total Short Term Interest 21,192.17 31,700.00 -10,507.83

Total 4200 Interest Income 21,192.17 31,700.00 -10,507.83

4300 Other Income

Meeting Meals Income 80.00 80.00

Workshop Meals Income 962.43 962.43

Total 4300 Other Income 1,042.43 1,042.43

Total Revenue $820,326.33 $1,255,200.00 $ -434,873.67

GROSS PROFIT $820,326.33 $1,255,200.00 $ -434,873.67

Expenditures

5001 Payroll Expenses

Benefits -5,480.34 -5,480.34

ICHRA 867.58 867.58

Salary 625,473.81 810,383.77 -184,909.96

SocSec Company -1,472.38 -1,472.38

Taxes 49,920.34 62,017.30 -12,096.96

SUTA (Minnesota UC) -2.21 405.34 -407.55

B-18



Upper Mississippi River Basin Association
FY 2024 Profit & Loss Budget Overview

July 2023 - June 2024

Accrual Basis  Tuesday, May 7, 2024 09:38 AM GMT-05:00   2/3

TOTAL

ACTUAL BUDGET OVER BUDGET

Workforce Enhancement Fee -2.21 405.34 -407.55

Total Taxes 49,915.92 62,827.98 -12,912.06

Total 5001 Payroll Expenses 669,304.59 873,211.75 -203,907.16

5002 Benefits Administration 1,740.00 1,000.00 740.00

5100 Space Rental

Office Rental 59,147.51 55,089.00 4,058.51

Total 5100 Space Rental 59,147.51 55,089.00 4,058.51

5101 Legal and Financial

Bank Charges 40.00 -40.00

Insurance 2,249.35 6,200.00 -3,950.65

Legal and Tax Services 3,085.00 5,000.00 -1,915.00

Total 5101 Legal and Financial 5,334.35 11,240.00 -5,905.65

5102 Telephone/Communications 11,727.16 8,000.00 3,727.16

5103 Communications/Publications 75,165.00 50,000.00 25,165.00

5104 Equipment

Equipment (Maint./Rental) 811.06 1,000.00 -188.94

Equipment (Purchase) 4,241.92 4,241.92

Total 5104 Equipment 5,052.98 1,000.00 4,052.98

5105 Supplies 1,602.33 5,000.00 -3,397.67

5106 Postage 118.13 200.00 -81.87

5107 Other Services 15,355.00 10,000.00 5,355.00

5200 Meeting Expenses 24,989.03 50,000.00 -25,010.97

5201 Travel 33,562.55 50,000.00 -16,437.45

5202 State Travel Reimbursement

Illinois 958.80 5,000.00 -4,041.20

Iowa 388.98 5,000.00 -4,611.02

Minnesota 352.80 5,000.00 -4,647.20

Missouri 1,000.08 5,000.00 -3,999.92

State WQ Travel 494.39 3,500.00 -3,005.61

Wisconsin 5,000.00 -5,000.00

Total 5202 State Travel Reimbursement 3,195.05 28,500.00 -25,304.95

5300 USGS Nature-Based Solutions

Other Contractual Services 30,000.00 -30,000.00

UMRBA Contractual Services 8,000.00 -8,000.00

Total 5300 USGS Nature-Based Solutions 38,000.00 -38,000.00

5301 OPA Expenses

Equipment (Maint./Rental) OPA 530.10 6,500.00 -5,969.90

Equipment OPA 4,186.46 1,000.00 3,186.46

Other OPA 50.00 -50.00

Travel OPA 2,170.15 2,000.00 170.15

Total 5301 OPA Expenses 6,886.71 9,550.00 -2,663.29

5302 USEPA NRS Workshops

B-19



Upper Mississippi River Basin Association
FY 2024 Profit & Loss Budget Overview

July 2023 - June 2024

Accrual Basis  Tuesday, May 7, 2024 09:38 AM GMT-05:00   3/3

TOTAL

ACTUAL BUDGET OVER BUDGET

Communications 600.00 3,900.00 -3,300.00

Meeting Expenses 4,518.26 40,000.00 -35,481.74

Supplies 100.00 -100.00

Travel 163.71 4,700.00 -4,536.29

Travel Assistance 6,841.38 10,000.00 -3,158.62

Total 5302 USEPA NRS Workshops 12,123.35 58,700.00 -46,576.65

5999 Miscellaneous Expense 0.00 0.00

Total Expenditures $925,303.74 $1,249,490.75 $ -324,187.01

NET OPERATING REVENUE $ -104,977.41 $5,709.25 $ -110,686.66

NET REVENUE $ -104,977.41 $5,709.25 $ -110,686.66

B-20



Upper Mississippi River Basin Association
Balance Sheet
As of May 7, 2024

Accrual Basis  Tuesday, May 7, 2024 09:41 AM GMT-05:00   1/2

TOTAL

ASSETS

Current Assets

Bank Accounts

Checking HT 2732 178,375.92

Investment

CD_2 50,000.00

Sweep HT 5401 313,060.32

Total Investment 363,060.32

Total Bank Accounts $541,436.24

Accounts Receivable

Contract/grants

Invoiced/Billable 33,792.48

Total Contract/grants 33,792.48

Total Accounts Receivable $33,792.48

Other Current Assets

Prepaid Expense 8.00

Office Rental Prepaid Expense 8,244.10

Total Prepaid Expense 8,252.10

Total Other Current Assets $8,252.10

Total Current Assets $583,480.82

Fixed Assets

604(b) Equipment 568.95

Accum. Deprec. 604(b) -568.95

Accum. Deprec. OPA -23,004.15

Accum. Deprec. STC -2,989.68

Accum. Deprec. UMRBA -32,789.73

Accum. Deprec. WQ -1,290.00

OPA Equipment 28,205.12

STC Equipment 4,332.67

UMRBA Equipment 100,330.13

WQ Equipment 1,290.47

Total Fixed Assets $74,084.83

TOTAL ASSETS $657,565.65

B-21



Upper Mississippi River Basin Association
Balance Sheet
As of May 7, 2024

Accrual Basis  Tuesday, May 7, 2024 09:41 AM GMT-05:00   2/2

TOTAL

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

Liabilities

Current Liabilities

Credit Cards

Visa Chase 5294 1,897.66

Total Credit Cards $1,897.66

Other Current Liabilities

Deferred MO DoC (WLM) Revenue 4,206.05

Office Expense Liabilities

Travel Expense 1,619.60

Total Office Expense Liabilities 1,619.60

Payroll Liabilities -695.34

Accrued Vacation 51,656.55

Accrued Vacation FICA 3,951.71

Federal Withholding 189.00

Medicare

Medicare Company 39.17

Medicare Employee 39.17

Total Medicare 78.34

Minnesota Withholding -1,113.17

MN Income Tax 1,206.17

MN Unemployment Taxes 46.38

Social Security

SocSec Company 167.50

SocSec Employee 167.50

Total Social Security 335.00

SUTA (Minnesota UC) 325.51

Workforce Enhancement Fee 334.97

Total Payroll Liabilities 56,315.12

Total Other Current Liabilities $62,140.77

Total Current Liabilities $64,038.43

Total Liabilities $64,038.43

Equity

Retained Earnings 698,504.63

Net Revenue -104,977.41

Total Equity $593,527.22

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY $657,565.65

B-22



ATTACHMENT C 
 

USFWS Upper Mississippi River Refuge  
100th Anniversary 

 
 USFWS News Release (3/12/2024) (C-1)    

 Milwaukee Journal Sentinel News Story (2/27/2024) (C-2 to C-4) 

 Centennial Planning Committee and Partners Website:  
https://uppermiss100.com/History_1924.html  

 
 
 

 
 

https://uppermiss100.com/History_1924.html


C-1



C-2



C-3



C-4



ATTACHMENT D 
 
 

UMR Flow Frequency Study Information Paper 
(5/9/2024) (D-1 to D-3) 

 
 



Upper Mississippi River Flow Frequency Study 

Updated: 5/9/2024 

Point of Contact 
Leo Keller 
Project Manager 
309-794-5720

Location 
Upper Mississippi River Basin 

Description 
The current Upper Mississippi River and Illinois River flow 
frequency study, completed in 2004, was created using a 
period of record ending in 1998. Since then, frequent and 
record setting major floods have occurred. The flood of 2019 
was not only historic with regards to flood heights, but also in its duration. The Mississippi River was above flood stage at Cape 
Girardeau for 145 days. In addition, many communities between Dubuque, Iowa and St. Louis, Missouri have experienced the 
majority of their top 10 flood crests in the past 20 years. Significant flooding on the UMR occurred in 2001, 2008, 2011, 2013, 
2014, 2018, and 2019. The Illinois River has experienced the same unprecedented flooding. At Peoria, IL (on the Illinois 
Waterway), 5 of the 10 highest flood crests have occurred since 1998, including the record crest in 2013.  

This effort will update the flood flow frequency profiles on the Upper Mississippi River from Birds Point (Mile 0.0) to Anoka, 
MN (864.8), and the Illinois River from Grafton (Mile 0.0) to Dresden Island Lock and Dam (Mile 271.5). Previous 
methodologies will be reviewed and modified as needed to confirm they meet the current state of the practice of flood 
frequency calculation. The study will utilize input data gathered during the previous flow frequency effort, augmented with 
new observed data to complete a 122-year period of record (1898 to 2020).  

Completion of the proposed study, utilizing the updated period of record and new federal guidelines for determining flood 
flow frequencies  (England, J.F., Jr., Cohn, T.A., Faber, B.A., Stedinger, J.R., Thomas, W.O., Jr., Veilleux, A.G., Kiang, J.E., 
and Mason, R.R., Jr. 2019. “Guidelines for Determining Flood Flow Frequency—Bulletin 17C.” In Book 4: Hydrologic 
Analysis and Interpretation, Version 1.1: May 31, 2019, 148. Reston, VA: U.S. Geological Survey) will improve confidence 
and reliability of flow frequencies on the UMR and IWW to support flood risk management planning and communication and 
the USACE Dam and Levee Safety Programs. This will provide an opportunity to incorporate available climate change data into 
the analysis of a large river system using the latest USACE Guidance. Updated frequency profiles and associated 
documentation will be published at the completion of this effort. 

Background 
The benefits of an updated flow frequency study on the Upper Mississippi and Illinois Rivers will be realized immediately and 
ensuring water resource decisions are made using current and accurate data will provide a considerable value to the nation 
through potential flood impact analyses, flood resiliency alternative evaluations, life safety considerations, and economic 
impact predictions. The Corps continually engages with watershed stakeholders through its various programs and authorities. 
These stakeholders routinely ask what the effects these recent common and historic floods are on the previously calculated 
frequencies and have requested this data be included when making water resource decisions.  

From FY2018 to present, the Corps provided technical assistance to the Upper Mississippi River Basin Association (UMRBA) on 
a Planning Assistance to States effort to identify Upper Mississippi River Watershed Strategy measures that have consensus 
and could have an immediate benefit. Two of the  high leverage measures USACE identified and secured Federal funding for 
were the seamless UMRS HEC-RAS hydraulic flood analysis model (completed in 2022) and the Flow Frequency Study (initiated 
in 2021). As valuable as the HEC-RAS flood analysis model has demonstrated, it is still operating with the old 1998 flow 
frequency data.  The accuracy of the model’s flood analysis will be significantly improved with the updated flow frequency 
data that incorporates the last 25 years of actual flow data that includes several historic magnitude and duration flood events.  

D-1



Upper Mississippi River Flow Frequency Study 

Updated: 5/9/2024 

The combination of the HEC RAS flood analysis model and recent flow frequencies will be immediately applied to improve 
flood impact analysis and planning for better flood resiliency for the UMRS communities and landowners.  

Status 
The project was partially funded in FY 2021, FY 2022, and FY 2023 for development of a detailed scope of work, inventorying 
existing data and performing most of an Engineering and Construction Bulletin (ECB) 2018-14 climate assessment.  

Some of the major tasks still to be completed by this ongoing UMRS Flow Frequency Study include: 
 HEC-HMS models will be used to compute local inflow for the period of record.
 Compliment newly developed UMRS HEC-RAS flood analysis models by incorporating the last 25yrs of record setting

flows, prolonged flood events and compute profiles for future flood frequency analysis.
 Existing Corps Water Management System (CWMS) models from regulated basins within the study area will be

utilized as needed to route inflow and provide regulated vs unregulated flow information.  CWMS is an automated
information system used by the Corps to support its water control management mission.

 Development of an interagency team which will include USACE (MVS, MVP, and MVR), FEMA, USGS, NWS, NRCS, and
state agencies from Missouri, Illinois, and Iowa.

 Internal review and coordination will be conducted within the HH&C CoPs from MVD and HQ, and with HEC, the
USACE Climate Change team, and the USACE hydrology committee, as required. Additional outside expert assistance
may also be required.

 Active UMRS Stakeholder communication, progress reporting and review opportunities will be provided throughout
the study period.

In FY 2021, $180,000 in funding was provided through an on-going Lower Mississippi River Basin Flow Frequency Study to 
develop an advanced scope of work for the UMR Flow Frequency Study. The UMR is a major contributor to the flows on the 
Lower Mississippi River, and any data developed from the UMR flow frequency study must be consistent and compatible with 
this on-going study. In FY 2022, an additional $200,000 in combined funding through the Lower Mississippi River Basin Flow 
Frequency Study and Floodplain Management Services (FPMS ) was provided to continue coordination and complete Phase I 
of the study. In FY 2023, partial funding was received for the study once again via Mississippi River and Tributaries project, 
with a total allocation of $150,000.   

Additional Information 
Congressional Interest 
All within the Rock Island, Saint Paul, and Saint Louis Districts 

Authority 
FY 2023 and beyond – Water Resources and Development Act (WRDA) 2022 Sec. 8219 

Summarized Project Costs 
Estimated Federal Cost $3,600,000 
Estimated Non-Federal Cost $0 

Estimated Total Project Cost $3,600,000 
Allocations Prior to FY 2024 $765,000 
FY 2024 Allocation $1,000,000 

FY 2024 Total Capability $1,000,000 
FY 2025 President’s Budget $0 

Major Work Item Prior Year 
FY 2023: The project advanced Phase I of the study. Major activities included completion of data inventorying, near 

D-2



Upper Mississippi River Flow Frequency Study 

Updated: 5/9/2024 

completion of the ECB 2018-14 climate assessment, and development of a draft Hydrologic Engineering Management Plan 
(HEMP). 

Major Work Item Current Year 
FY 2024: The $1,000,000 recently appropriated through the FY 2024 Community Project Funding will allow the study team to  
complete the remainder of Phase I activities and approximately half of Phase II activities. The following two scope of work 
tables provide a general description and status of Phase I and Phase II activities for the ongoing UMRS Flow Frequency Study. 

Work associated with Phase III of the study will not commence until sometime in FY 2025 and wrap up by the end of FY 2026.  The 
scope of work table below provides a general description of Phase III activities. 

D-3



ATTACHMENT E 
 
 

USACE Memo Regarding Navigation and Ecosystem 
Sustainability Program Advisory Panel  

(5-2-2024) (E-1 to E-3) 
 

 



E-1



E-2



E-3



ATTACHMENT F 
 

USACE Agency Specific Procedures for Principles, 
Requirements, and Guidelines  

 
 Proposed Rule (2/15/2024) (F-1 to F-40) 

 Rule Website:                                                                                                   
https://www.regulations.gov/docket/COE-2023-0005  

 
 

https://www.regulations.gov/docket/COE-2023-0005


F-1



F-2



F-3



F-4



F-5



F-6



F-7



F-8



F-9



F-10



F-11



F-12



F-13



F-14



F-15



F-16



F-17



F-18



F-19



F-20



F-21



F-22



F-23



F-24



F-25



F-26



F-27



F-28



F-29



F-30



F-31



F-32



F-33



F-34



F-35



F-36



F-37



F-38



F-39



F-40



 
ATTACHMENT G 

 
ASA(CW) Connor Waters and Wetlands Memo 

(3/22/2024) (G-1 to G-5) 
 
 

 
 



G-1



G-2

67HB
Rectangle

67HB
Rectangle



G-3

67HB
Rectangle



G-4

67HB
Rectangle



G-5

67HB
Rectangle



 
ATTACHMENT H 

 
 

Additional Items 
 

 Future Meeting Schedule (H-1) 
 

 Frequently Used Acronyms (4-29-2022) (H-2 to H-8) 
 
 

 
 

 
 



August 6 

August 7 

QUARTERLY MEETINGS 

FUTURE MEETING SCHEDULE 

AUGUST2024 

Minneapolis-St. Paul Metro 

UMRBA Quarterly Meeting 

UMRR Coordinating Committee Quarterly Meeting 

NOVEMBER 2024 

St. Louis, MO 

November 19 UMRBA Quarterly Meeting 

November 20 UMRR Coordinating Committee Quarterly Meeting 

G-1

H-1

67HB
Rectangle

67HB
Rectangle



AAR 

A&E 

ACRCC 

AFB 

AHAG 

AHRI 

AIS 

ALC 

ALDU 

AM 

ANS 

AP 

APE 

ARRA 

ASA(CW) 

A-Team

ATR

AWi

AWO

AWQMN

BA

BATIC

BCOES

BCR

BMPs

BO

CAP

CAWS

CCC

CCP

CEICA

CERCLA

CEQ

CFR

CFS

CG

CIA

CMMP

COE

COPT

CPUE

CRA

CREP

CRP

Acronyms Frequently Used on the Upper Mississippi River System 

After Action Report 

Architecture and Engineering 

Asian Carp Regional Coordinating Committee 

Alternative Formulation Briefing 

Aquatic Habitat Appraisal Guide 

American Heritage Rivers Initiative 

Aquatic Invasive Species 

American Lands Conservancy 

Aquatic Life Designated Use( s) 

Adaptive Management 

Aquatic Nuisance Species 

Advisory Panel 

Additional Program Element 

American Recovery and Reinvestment Act 

Assistant Secretary of the Army for Civil Works 

Analysis Team 

Agency Technical Review 

America's Watershed Initiative 

American Waterways Operators 

Ambient Water Quality Monitoring Network 

Biological Assessment 

Build America Transportation Investment Center 

Bid-ability, Constructability, Operability, Environmental, Sustainability 

Benefit-Cost Ratio 

Best Management Practices 

Biological Opinion 

Continuing Authorities Program 

Chicago Area Waterways System 

Commodity Credit Corporation 

Comprehensive Conservation Plan 

Cost Effectiveness Incremental Cost Analysis 

Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation, and Liability Act 

Council on Environmental Quality 

Code of Federal Regulations 

Cubic Feet Per Second 

Construction General 

Computerized Inventory and Analysis 

Channel Maintenance Management Plan 

Corps of Engineers 

Captain of the Port 

Catch Per Unit Effort 

Continuing Resolution Authority 

Conservation Reserve Enhancement Program 

Conservation Reserve Program 

G-2

H-2

67HB
Rectangle



CSP 

CUA 

CWA 

CY 

DALS 

DED 

DEM 

DET 

DEWS 

DMMP 

DNR 

DO 

DOA 

DOC 

DOER 

DOT 

DPR 

DQC 

DSS 

EA 

ECC 

EEC 

EIS 

EMAP 

EMAP-GRE 

EMP 

EMP-CC 

EO 

EPA 

EPM 

EPR 

EQIP 

ER 

ERDC 

ESA 

EWMN 

EWP 

FACA 

FEMA 

FERC 

FDR 

FFS 

FMG 

FONSI 

FRM 

Conservation Security Program 

Cooperative Use Agreement 

Clean Water Act 

Cubic Yards 

Department of Agriculture and Land Stewardship 

Department of Economic Development 

Digital Elevation Model 

District Ecological Team 

Drought Early Warning System 

Dredged Material Management Plan 

Department of Natural Resources 

Dissolved Oxygen 

Department of Agriculture 

Department of Conservation 

Dredging Operations and Environmental Research 

Department of Transportation 

Definite Project Report 

District Quality Control/Quality Assurance 

Decision Support System 

Environmental Assessment 

Economics Coordinating Committee 

Essential Ecosystem Characteristic 

Environmental Impact Statement 

Environmental Monitoring and Assessment Program 

Environmental Monitoring and Assessment Program-Great Rivers Ecosystem 

Environmental Management Program [Note: Former name of Upper Mississippi 
River Restoration Program.] 

Environmental Management Program Coordinating Committee 

Executive Order 

Environmental Protection Agency 

Environmental Pool Management 

External Peer Review 

Environmental Quality Incentives Program 

Engineering Regulation 

Engineering Research & Development Center 

Endangered Species Act 

Early Warning Monitoring Network 

Emergency Watershed Protection Program 

Federal Advisory Committee Act 

Federal Emergency Management Agency 

Federal Energy Regulatory Commission 

Flood Damage Reduction 

Flow Frequency Study 

Forest Management Geodatabase 

Finding of No Significant Impact 

Flood Risk Management 

G-3

H-3

67HB
Rectangle



FRST 

FSA 

FTE 

FWCA 

FWIC 

FWS 

FWWG 

FY 

GAO 

GEIS 

GI 

GIS 

GLC 

GLC 

GLMRIS 

GPS 

GREAT 

GRP 

H&H 

HAB 

HEC-EFM 

HBC-RAS 

HEL 

HEP 

HNA 

HPSF 

HQUSACE 

H.R. 

HREP 

HSI 

HU 

HUC 

IBA 

IBI 

IC 

res 

ICWP 

IDIQ 

IEPR 

IGE 

IIA 

IIFO 

ILP 

IMTS 

IPR 

IRCC 

Floodplain Restoration System Team 

Farm Services Agency 

Full Time Equivalent 

Fish & Wildlife Coordination Act 

Fish and Wildlife Interagency Committee 

Fish and Wildlife Service 

Fish and Wildlife Work Group 

Fiscal Year 

Government Accountability Office 

Generic Environmental Impact Statement 

General Investigations 

Geographic Information System 

Governors Liaison Committee 

Great Lakes Commission 

Great Lakes and Mississippi River Interbasin Study 

Global Positioning System 

Great River Environmental Action Team 

Geographic Response Plan 

Hydrology and Hydraulics 

Harmful Algal Bloom 

Hydrologic Engineering Center Ecosystems Function Model 

Hydrologic Engineering Center River Analysis System 

Highly Erodible Land 

Habitat Evaluation Procedure 

Habitat Needs Assessment 

HREP Planning and Sequencing Framework 

Headquarters, USACE 

House of Representatives 

Habitat Rehabilitation and Enhancement Project 

Habitat Suitability Index 

Habitat Unit 

Hydrologic Unit Code 

Important Bird Area 

Index of Biological (Biotic) Integrity 

Incident Commander 

Incident Command System 

Interstate Council on Water Policy 

Indefinite Delivery/Indefinite Quantity 

Independent External Peer Review 

Independent Government Estimate 

Implementation Issues Assessment 

Illinois-Iowa Field Office (formerly RIFO - Rock Island Field Office) 

Integrated License Process 

Inland Marine Transportation System 

In-Progress Review 

Illinois River Coordinating Council 

G-4

H-4

67HB
Rectangle



IRPT 

IRTC 

IRWG 

ISA 

IWR 

IWRM 

IWS 

IWTF 

IWUB 

IWW 

L&D 

LC/LU 

LDB 

LERRD 

LiDAR 

LMR 

LMRCC 

LOI 

LTRM 

M-35

MAFC

MARAD

MARC2000

MCAT

MICRA

MDM

MIPR

MMR

MMRP

MNRG

MOA

MoRAST

MOU 

MRAPS 

MRBI 

MRC 

MRCC 

MRCTI 

MRRC 

MR&T 

MSP 

MVD 

MVP 

MVR 

MVS 

Inland Rivers, Ports & Terminals 

Implementation Report to Congress 

Illinois River Work Group 

Inland Sensitivity Atlas 

Institute for Water Resources 

Integrated Water Resources Management 

Integrated Water Science 

Inland Waterways Trust Fund 

Inland Waterways Users Board 

Illinois Waterway 

Lock( s) and Dam 

Land Cover/Land Use 

Left Descending Bank 

Lands, Easements, Rights-of-Way, Relocation of Utilities or Other Existing 
Structures, and Disposal Areas 

Light Detection and Ranging 

Lower Mississippi River 

Lower Mississippi River Conservation Committee 

Letter of Intent 

Long Term Resource Monitoring 

Marine Highway 35 

Mid-America Freight Coalition 

U.S. Maritime Administration 

Midwest Area River Coalition 2000 

Mussel Community Assessment Tool 

Mississippi Interstate Cooperative Resource Association 

Major subordinate command Decision Milestone 

Military Interdepartmental Purchase Request 

Middle Mississippi River 

Middle Mississippi River Partnership 

Midwest Natural Resources Group 

Memorandum of Agreement 

Missouri River Association of States and Tribes 

Memorandum of Understanding 

Missouri River Authorized Purposes Study 

Mississippi River Basin (Healthy Watersheds) Initiative 

Mississippi River Commission 

Mississippi River Connections Collaborative 

Mississippi River Cities and Towns Initiative 

Mississippi River Research Consortium 

Mississippi River and Tributaries (project) 

Minimum Sustainable Program 

Mississippi Valley Division 

St. Paul District 

Rock Island District 

St. Louis District 

G-5

H-5

67HB
Rectangle



NAS 

NAWQA 

NCP 

NIDIS 

NEBA 

NECC 

NED 

NEPA 

NESP 

NETS 

NGO 

NGRREC 

NGWOS 

NICC 

NPDES 

NPS 

NPS 

NRC 

NRCS 

NRDAR 

NRT 

NSIP 

NWI 

NWR 

O&M 

OHWM 

0MB 

OMRR&R 

OPA 

ORSANCO 

osc 

OSE 

OSIT 

P3 

PA 

PAS 

P&G 

P&R 

P&S 

P&S 

PCA 

PCA 

PCX 

PDT 

PED 

PgMP 

National Academies of Science 

National Water Quality Assessment 

National Contingency Plan 

National Integrated Drought Information System (NOAA) 

Net Environmental Benefit Analysis 

Navigation Environmental Coordination Committee 

National Economic Development 

National Environmental Policy Act 

Navigation and Ecosystem Sustainability Program 

Navigation Economic Technologies Program 

Non-Governmental Organization 

National Great Rivers Research and Education Center 

Next Generation Water Observing System 

Navigation Interests Coordinating Committee 

National Pollution Discharge Elimination System 

Non-Point Source 

National Park Service 

National Research Council 

Natural Resources Conservation Service 

Natural Resources Damage Assessment and Restoration 

National Response Team 

National Streamflow Information Program 

National Wetlands Inventory 

National Wildlife Refuge 

Operation and Maintenance 

Ordinary High Water Mark 

Office of Management and Budget 

Operation, Maintenance, Repair, Rehabilitation, and Replacement 

Oil Pollution Act of 1990 

Ohio River Valley Water Sanitation Commission 

On-Scene Coordinator 

Other Social Effects 

On Site Inspection Team 

Public-Private Partnerships 

Programmatic Agreement 

Planning Assistance to States 

Principles and Guidelines 

Principles and Requirements 

Plans and Specifications 

Principles and Standards 

Pollution Control Agency 

Project Cooperation Agreement 

Planning Center of Expertise 

Project Delivery Team 

Preconstruction Engineering and Design 

Program Management Plan 

G-6

H-6

67HB
Rectangle



PILT 

PIR 

PL 

PMP 

PORT 

PPA 

PPT 

QA/QC 

RCRA 

RCP 

RCPP 

RDB 

RED 

RIFO 

RM 

RP 

RPEDN 

RPT 

RRAT 

RRCT 

RRF 

RRT 

RST 

RTC 

s. 

SAV 

SDWA 

SEMA 

SET 

SMART 

SONS 

sow 

SRF 

SWCD 

T&E 

TEUs 

TIGER 

TLP 

TMDL 

TNC 

TSP 

TSS 

TVA 

TWG 

UMESC 

Payments In Lieu of Taxes 

Project Implementation Report 

Public Law 

Project Management Plan 

Public Outreach Team 

Project Partnership Agreement 

Program Planning Team 

Quality Assurance/Quality Control 

Resource Conservation and Recovery Act 

Regional Contingency Plan 

Regional Conservation Partnership Program 

Right Descending Bank 

Regional Economic Development 

Rock Island Field Office (now IIFO - Illinois-Iowa Field Office) 

River Mile 

Responsible Party 

Regional Planning and Environment Division North 

Reach Planning Team 

River Resources Action Team 

River Resources Coordinating Team 

River Resources Forum 

Regional Response Team 

Regional Support Team 

Report to Congress 

Senate 

Submersed Aquatic Vegetation 

Safe Drinking Water Act 

State Emergency Management Agency 

System Ecological Team 

Specific, Measurable, Attainable, Risk Informed, Timely 

Spill of National Significance 

Scope of Work 

State Revolving Fund 

Soil and Water Conservation District 

Threatened and Endangered 

twenty-foot equivalent units 

Transportation Investment Generating Economic Recovery 

Traditional License Process 

Total Maximum Daily Load 

The Nature Conservancy 

Tentatively selected plan 

Total Suspended Solids 

Tennessee Valley Authority 

Technical Work Group 

Upper Midwest Environmental Sciences Center 

G-7

H-7

67HB
Rectangle



UMIMRA 

UMR 

UMRBA 

UMRBC 

UMRCC 

UMRCP 

UMR-TWW 

UMRNWFR 

UMRR 

UMRR CC 

UMRS 

UMWA 

USACE 

USCG 

USDA 

USFWS 

USGS 

VTC 

WCI 

WES 

WHAG 

WHIP 

WIIN 

WLM 

WLMTF 

WQ 

WQEC 

WQTF 

WQS 

WRDA 

WRP 

WRRDA 

Upper Mississippi, Illinois, and Missouri Rivers Association 

Upper Mississippi River 

Upper Mississippi River Basin Association 

Upper Mississippi River Basin Commission 

Upper Mississippi River Conservation Committee 

Upper Mississippi River Comprehensive Plan 

Upper Mississippi River-Illinois Waterway 

Upper Mississippi River National Wildlife and Fish Refuge 

Upper Mississippi River Restoration Program [Note: Formerly known as 
Environmental Management Program.] 

Upper Mississippi River Restoration Program Coordinating Committee 

Upper Mississippi River System 

Upper Mississippi Waterway Association 

U.S. Army Corps of Engineers 

U.S. Coast Guard 

U.S. Department of Agriculture 

U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service 

U.S. Geological Survey 

Video Teleconference 

Waterways Council, Inc. 

Waterways Experiment Station (replaced by ERDC) 

Wildlife Habitat Appraisal Guide 

Wildlife Habitat Incentives Program 

Water Infrastructure Improvements for the Nation Act 

Water Level Management 

Water Level Management Task Force 

Water Quality 

Water Quality Executive Committee 

Water Quality Task Force 

Water Quality Standard 

Water Resources Development Act 

Wetlands Reserve Program 

Water Resources Reform and Development Act 

G-8

H-8

67HB
Rectangle


	A. Minutes of the February 27, 2024 UMRBA Quarterly Meeting
	B. Executive Director’s Report
	C. USFWS Upper Mississippi River Refuge100th Anniversary
	D. UMR Flow Frequency Study Information Paper
	E. USACE Memo Regarding Navigation and Ecosystem Sustainability Program Advisory Panel
	F. USACE Agency Specific Procedures for Principles, Requirements, and Guidelines
	G. ASA(CW) Connor Waters and Wetlands Memo
	H. Additional Items



